

BYLAWS
OF
ROTARY INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT 7360, INC.
Effective July 1, 2014
Revised April 30, 2016

PREAMBLE

The Rotary clubs within District 7360 of Rotary International (the “District”) have adopted these Bylaws. Rotary International District 7360, Inc. (the “Corporation”) is formed as a non-profit corporation known as “Rotary International District 7360.”

ARTICLE ONE

NAME AND OBJECTIVES

1.01 Name. The name of the Corporation shall be Rotary International District 7360, Inc.

1.02 Objectives.

1.02.01 To provide structure for Rotary clubs within the District as assigned by Rotary International (“RI”); to provide support to these Rotary clubs in their pursuit of programs and activities that promote the objectives of Rotary; and to encourage, promote, extend, and supervise Rotary throughout the District.

1.02.02 To conduct District Conferences.

1.02.03 To conduct projects and activities consistent with the Corporation’s non-profit purposes and the object of Rotary, as defined by RI.

1.02.04 To hold, manage, sell, and lease personal and real property and to invest and re-invest corporate funds in any type of property or security which the Board of Directors may deem advisable whether or not such investments are of the type or character authorized by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the State of West Virginia, or the State of Maryland for the investment of trust funds, and to enter into such contracts and execute such conveyances, instruments, and releases as may be necessary and proper to carry out the objects and purposes of the Corporation.

1.02.05 To engage in any other permitted activities for corporations exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

1.03 Tax-Exempt Status. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by a non-profit corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(4) of the Code.

ARTICLE TWO

MEMBERS, DUES, AND ANNUAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERSHIP

2.01 Members. The members of the Corporation (“Members”) shall be comprised of and limited to all Rotary clubs designated to be in the District pursuant to the Bylaws of RI. The addition or removal of a Member club or clubs from the District pursuant to the RI Bylaws shall immediately and automatically result in a corresponding change in the membership (for clarity, references throughout these Bylaws to individual members of a club or membership of a club shall be in the lower case).

2.02 Dues. Each Member club shall pay semi-annual per capita dues to the Corporation at the rate established at the Annual Meeting immediately before the year in which the dues are payable. The membership on which the per capita dues are based shall be the membership number on July 1, and the number of new club members as of January 1, that is sent to RI as the official membership of the Member club. Dues shall be due and payable fifteen (15) days after the billing statement is mailed to the Member club.

2.03 Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Corporation is the formal annual business meeting of the Corporation.

2.03.01. Time of Meeting; Notice. The Annual Meeting shall be held during the District Conference. Accordingly, throughout the Bylaws, reference to the Annual Meeting shall also mean the District Conference. The District Governor, in consultation with the Member club presidents, shall establish the time or place for the Annual Meeting. The date of the Annual Meeting shall not conflict with the date of the District **Training** Assembly, International Assembly, or International Convention. The District Governor, on behalf of the Board, shall send to the Members written or electronic notice of the time and place of the Annual Meeting at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, before the date of the meeting. A copy of all proposed resolutions to be considered at the Annual Meeting shall be included with such notice.

2.03.02. Resolutions. Any proposed resolution to be submitted for vote at the Annual Meeting shall be originated by a Member club, the District Governor, a District Committee, or the Board. Any proposed resolution shall be sent to the Chairperson of the District Committee on Legislation and Resolutions, with a copy of the proposed resolution to the Board and the District Governor, not later than ninety (90) days prior to the Annual Meeting. The District Committee on Legislation and Resolutions shall then review the proposed resolution and submit its recommendations on the resolution to the District Governor and the Board not later than sixty (60) days prior to the Annual

Meeting. No proposed resolution may be considered at the Annual Meeting without notice of such resolution having been given in the manner set forth above.

2.04 Voting at Annual Meeting.

2.04.01 Electors. Each Member club shall select, certify, and send to the Annual Meeting at least one (1) elector. Any Member club with a membership of more than twenty-five (25) members shall be entitled to select, certify, and send one (1) additional elector for each additional twenty-five (25) members. For purposes of this section, the membership of a Member club shall be the number of individual members in the Member club as of the date of the most recent semi-annual report preceding the date of the Annual Meeting. Any Member club whose membership in RI has been suspended by the Board of RI shall not be entitled to send any electors to the Annual Meeting. Each elector selected by a Member club for the Annual Meeting must be a member of such Member club. An elector must be present at the Annual Meeting to vote.

2.04.02 Voting Procedures at Annual Meeting. (a) Electors Only. The following issues shall be restricted to the vote of the electors only: (1) the election of the District Governor-nominee; (2) the election of a member and alternate member of the District to serve on the Nominating Committee for selection of RI director-nominee; and (3) the election of the District's representative and alternate representative to the RI Council on Legislation For the election of the District Governor-nominee, all votes from a Member with more than one vote shall be cast for the same candidate.

(b) Members in Good Standing. Every individual member of a Member club who is present and in good standing, whether or not an elector, shall be entitled to vote on all other matters submitted to a vote at such Annual Meeting not restricted to vote of the electors as set forth in subsection (a) above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any elector shall have the right to demand a poll upon any matter presented at the Annual Meeting. In such cases, voting on such matter shall be restricted to the electors.

2.04.03. Quorum. A quorum for the enactment of legislation and other matters requiring approval at the Annual Meeting will consist of at least one (1) elector from a majority of the Member clubs at the Business Session, when such matters are to be considered at the Annual Meeting. The presence of a quorum will be determined by a roll call of Member clubs immediately preceding the report of the District Committee of Legislation at the Annual Meeting.

2.04.04. Approval of Legislation. All matters of legislation, and other matters requiring approval at the Annual Meeting, shall be adopted upon the affirmative vote of a majority of those present and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

2.05 Special Meetings. The Board may call a special meeting of the Members. The Board shall send written or electronic notice of the time and place of any special meeting at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, before the date of such special meeting.

2.06 Business of the Annual Meeting. Subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 2.04, the business that may be conducted at the Annual Meeting shall include (a) election of the District Governor-nominee, the District representative and alternate representative to the Council on Legislation, and the District representative member of the Nominating Committee that selects a director-nominee of RI; (b) consideration of any amendments to the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws that are properly submitted; (c) consideration of all resolutions that have been properly submitted; and (d) other business as shall properly come before the Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE THREE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.01 Number and Qualifications. A Board of Directors consisting of five (5) or more Directors shall oversee the business and affairs of the Corporation. Only active member Rotarians, as defined by RI, who are members of Member clubs in the District and who have served as president of a Member club in any Rotary District are eligible to serve as Directors.

3.02 Composition. The Board shall be composed of the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor nominee, and the three (3) most recent and available Past District Governors of the District who are active members of a Member club. The District Governor shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board. The District Governor-elect shall serve as the Vice-Chairperson.

Subject to Section 3.03, a Director shall serve for so long as he or she occupies one of the positions listed in this Section 3.02. In the event a Director no longer occupies one of the positions listed in this Section 3.02, the Director shall be automatically removed as Director, without ratification of the Board.

Additional Directors meeting the qualifications may be appointed by the District Governor, with ratification of the Board of Directors, to serve a one year term to run concurrently with the District Governor.

3.03 Appointment of Successor Past District Governor. In the event of the death, removal, or resignation of any of the three (3) most immediate Past District Governors serving on the Board, or in the event any such Past District Governor is no longer an active member of a Member club, the District Governor may appoint a Past District Governor of the District to fill the former Director's unexpired term.

3.04 Removal from the Board. The Board may, by a majority vote of the Directors, vote to remove any Director for cause.

3.05 Board Meetings.

3.05.01. Time; Place. Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held from time to time as provided in this Section. The Board meetings shall be held at the locations determined from time to time by the Board. The Board may determine under Section 3.05.02 that a meeting of the Board shall be held solely by means of remote communication.

3.05.02. Meetings Solely by Means of Remote Communication. Any meeting among Directors may be conducted solely by one or more means of remote communication through which all of the Directors may participate with each other during the meeting, if the same notice is given of the meeting as would be required by Section 3.05.04, and if the number of Directors participating in the meeting is sufficient to constitute a quorum at a meeting. Participation in a meeting by that means constitutes presence at the meeting.

3.05.03. Participation in Meetings by Means of Remote Communication. A Director may participate in a Board meeting by means of telephone conference or, if authorized by the Board, by such other means of remote communication, in each case through which the Director, other Directors so participating, and all Directors physically present at the meeting may participate with each other during the meeting. Participation in a meeting by this means constitutes presence at the meeting.

3.05.04. Calling Meetings; Notice. The District Governor or any two (2) Directors may call a Board meeting by giving at least five (5) days notice to all Directors of the date, time and place of the meeting. The notice need not state the purpose of the meeting. Any notice given to a Director by a form of electronic communication consented to by the Director to whom the notice is given, is effective when given. The notice is deemed given (i) if by facsimile communication, when directed to a facsimile number at which the Director has consented to receive notice; (ii) if by electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which the Director has consented to receive notice; or (iii) if by any other form of electronic communication by which the Director has consented to receive notice, when directed to the Director. Consent by a Director to notice given by electronic communication may be given in writing or by authenticated electronic communication. Any consent so given may be relied upon until revoked by the Director, provided that no revocation affects the validity of any notice given before receipt of revocation of the consent.

3.05.05. Previously Scheduled Meetings. If the day or date, time, and place of a Board meeting were announced at a previous meeting of the Board, no notice is required. Notice of an adjourned meeting need not be given other than by announcement at the meeting at which adjournment is taken.

3.05.06. Waiver of Notice. A Director may waive notice of a meeting of the Board. A waiver of notice by a Director entitled to notice is effective whether given before, at, or after the meeting and whether given in writing, orally, by authenticated electronic communication, or by attendance. Attendance by a Director at a meeting is a waiver of

notice of that meeting, except where the Director objects at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of business because the meeting was not properly called or convened in accordance with these Bylaws and does not participate thereafter in the meeting.

3.05.07. Absent Directors. A Director may give advance written consent or opposition to a proposal to be acted on at a Board meeting. If the Director is not present at the meeting, consent or opposition to a proposal does not constitute presence for purposes of determining the existence of a quorum, but consent or opposition shall be counted as a vote in favor of or against the proposal and shall be entered in the minutes or other record of action at the meeting, if the proposal acted on at the meeting is substantially the same or has substantially the same effect as the proposal to which the Director has consented or objected.

3.05.08. Quorum. A majority of the Directors currently holding office present at a meeting is a quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn a meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. If a quorum is present when a duly called or held meeting is convened, the Directors present may continue to transact business until adjournment, even though the withdrawal of a number of Directors originally present leaves less than the proportion or number otherwise required for a quorum.

3.05.09. Voting. At all meetings of the Board, each Director shall have one (1) vote.

3.06 Act of the Board. The Board of Directors shall take action by the affirmative vote of (i) a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at the time the action is taken, or (ii) a majority of the minimum proportion or number of Directors that would constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting, unless otherwise required by these Bylaws or by the Articles of Incorporation.

3.07 Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a Board of Directors meeting may be taken by written action signed or consented to by authenticated electronic communication by all of the Directors. If the action need not be approved at the Annual Meeting and the Articles of Incorporation so provide, the action may be taken by written action signed or consented to by authenticated electronic communication by the number of Directors that would be required to take the same action at a meeting of the Board at which all Directors were present. The written action is effective when signed or consented to by authenticated electronic communication by the required number of Directors, unless a different effective time is provided in the written action. When written action is permitted to be taken by less than all Directors, all Directors shall be notified immediately of its text and effective date. Failure to provide the requisite notice does not invalidate the written action; provided, however, a Director who does not sign or consent to the written action has no liability for the action or actions taken thereby.

3.08 Compensation. Directors shall not be compensated for their duties as Directors, except that the Directors may be reimbursed for their reasonable and substantiated expenses incurred on behalf of the Corporation.

ARTICLE FOUR

OFFICERS

Only Rotarians who are active members of Member clubs shall be eligible to serve as officers. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of those officers described in this Article Four, and such other officers as the Board may appoint from time to time.

4.01 District Governor. The District Governor shall serve as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. The District Governor shall perform the customary duties of a president and a chief executive officer of a non-profit corporation and those assigned by the Bylaws and policies of RI, by these Bylaws, and by the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. The District Governor shall be elected for a one (1) year term in the manner set forth in the Bylaws and policies of RI, by these Bylaws, and by the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. The District Budget (as defined below) shall include an allowance for the out-of-pocket third party expenses of the District Governor. The Board may, by majority vote, but only for cause, request the President of RI to remove a District Governor pursuant to the Bylaws and policies of RI.

4.01.01. Responsibilities. In addition to any duties assigned by the Bylaws and policies of RI and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time, the District Governor shall have the following responsibilities: (a) schedule the time, date and place for District-related meetings including, but not limited to, meetings of the District committees and the Annual Meeting; (b) prepare a monthly newsletter as described in the RI Manual of Procedure; (c) appoint all members of District committees prior to his or her commencement as District Governor and publish such members in a directory to be sent to all officers, committee members and Past District Governors by the commencement of his or her term; (d) maintain and possess all property of the Corporation during his or her term of office; (e) supply an accounting of all funds received from the Corporation and RI to the District Treasurer within two (2) months of the completion of his or her term of office; and (f) appoint a District Historian to maintain archives and collect retired records from the District Secretary.

4.01.02. Selection. In accordance with the Nominating Committee procedures set forth in Article 7 herein, the Corporation shall select a District Governor-nominee not more than thirty (30) months or less than twenty-four (24) months prior to the date of taking office; provided, however, the Board of RI may extend such date for good and sufficient reason. The District Governor-nominee will be elected as District Governor-elect at the RI convention held immediately preceding the year in which the District Governor-nominee is to be trained as the District Governor-elect at the International Assembly. The District-

Governor nominee so elected shall serve a one (1) year term as District Governor-elect and assume office on July 1 in the calendar year following election.

4.02 District Governor-elect. The District Governor-elect shall serve as the Vice Chairperson of the Corporation. The District Governor-elect shall assume this office in the manner set forth by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. The District Governor-elect shall assume the office of District Governor in the year immediately after serving as District Governor-elect. The District Governor may assign other responsibilities to the District Governor-elect, which are in addition to those proscribed by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. If the District Governor-elect is unable to fulfill the duties of District Governor-elect or to assume the position of District Governor, the District Governor-nominee may, when possible, upon certification by the District Governor and with notice to all Members, assume the position of District Governor-elect. The District Governor-elect shall serve as an assistant to the District Governor.

4.02.01. Responsibilities. In addition to any duties assigned by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time, the District Governor-elect shall (a) arrange a Presidents-Elect Training Seminar (PETS) after the International Assembly for all incoming Member club presidents for the purpose of providing instruction and information on administering Member clubs and Rotary service; and (b) ensure attendance of all Member club presidents-elect at the PETS and the District Assembly of Rotarians. The District Governor-elect may excuse a Member club president-elect from attendance at PETS; provided, however, that if a Member club president-elect shall be so excused, the Member club president-elect must send a designated Member club representative to the PETS who shall report back to the Member club president-elect. If the Member club president-elect either (i) fails to be so excused or (ii) if excused, fails to send a designated club representative to the PETS, then the Member club president-elect shall not be qualified to serve as Member club president.

4.03 District Governor-nominee. The minimum qualifications for serving as a District Governor-nominee include current membership in a Member club for at least three (3) years and one (1) year of service as club president of a Member club or any RI recognized Rotary club. The District Governor-nominee shall assume the office of District Governor-elect in the year immediately after serving as District Governor-nominee. The District Governor may assign other responsibilities to the District Governor-nominee, which are in addition to those proscribed by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time.

4.04 Assistant Governors.

4.04.01. Selection. The minimum qualifications for serving as an Assistant Governor include current membership in a Member club for at least two years and at least one (1) year of service as club president of a Member club or of any RI recognized Rotary club. By the end of November of the year he or she is serving as District Governor-elect, the

District Governor-elect shall select an Assistant Governor for each of the areas comprising the District. The term of an Assistant Governor shall be for one (1) year, but may be renewed for two (2) additional consecutive terms upon the approval of the District Governor.

4.04.02. Responsibilities. In addition to any duties assigned by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time, the Assistant Governors shall (a) attend the Assistant Governor Training Seminar, and attend and actively promote attendance at the District Conference/Annual Meeting, the District Assembly, and other meetings or events as directed by the District Governor; (b) meet with and assist the incoming Member club presidents in his or her assigned area before the commencement of the Rotary year to discuss Member club goals; (c) report to the District Governors after the visit with each incoming Member club president; (d) attend the official Member club visit with the District Governor, to assist the District Governor as needed; (e) encourage Member clubs to follow through on requests and recommendations of the District Governor; (f) participate in the Rotary Foundation programs, annual and special giving events and other special assignments as necessary; (g) encourage clubs to use Rotary Club Central for assessment and planning goals; and submit to the District Governor the Memo of Club Visits from each of their assigned member clubs by the deadlines set by the District Governor; (h) act as liaison between their assigned Member clubs and the District Governor; (i) interface and communicate with other Assistant Governors in the District; and (j) perform other duties as may be assigned by the District Governor.

4.05 District Treasurer. The District Governor shall appoint the District Treasurer, who shall serve at the pleasure of the District Governor for a one (1) year term to coincide with that of the District Governor; provided, the District Treasurer may serve for two (2) additional consecutive one (1) year terms, not to exceed three (3) consecutive one (1) year terms, so long as he or she remains in good standing of a Member club. The District Treasurer shall be an *ex officio* member of the District Finance Committee and Board of Directors. The District Treasurer shall maintain such records of account as may be necessary to reflect the receipts, expenditures, and financial condition of the Corporation, and shall perform any other duties as are customary for this office. The District Treasurer shall be empowered, upon authorization of the Finance Committee and the District Governor, to sign checks for the disbursement of the Corporation's funds; provided, that all checks must also be signed by the District Governor or his or her designee who shall be a member in good standing of a Member club; and further provided, that checks shall only be issued upon the receipt of a detailed invoice, receipt or statement of expense by the District Treasurer. The District Treasurer shall be responsible for the billing and collection of Member dues. The District Treasurer shall prepare for each College of Governors Meeting and Annual Meeting for each Rotary year a financial statement showing receipts and disbursements, assets and liabilities of the Corporation. The District Governor may assign other responsibilities to the District Treasurer, which are in addition to those proscribed by the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time.

4.05.01. District Budget. The District Governor-elect, in coordination with the District Finance Committee, shall present the District Budget at the District Assembly. At a date set by the District Governor-elect, which shall be prior to the District Assembly each year, the District Finance Committee shall prepare the District Budget based upon the budget requests from each District committee together with an estimate of the reasonable operating expenses of the Corporation. The District Finance Committee shall submit a recommended District Budget to the District-Governor elect, who shall then submit the recommended District Budget to the incoming Member club presidents for approval at the District Assembly. The District Budget shall be adopted upon majority vote of the incoming Member club presidents.

4.05.02. Financial Statements. The District Treasurer shall publish and distribute to all Member clubs quarterly financial reports reflecting the entire financial status of all activities in the District. In addition, the District Treasurer shall annually submit to the District Governor, immediate Past District Governor, District Governor-elect, District Governor-nominee and all Member clubs an annual financial report of the previous Rotary year prepared by the District Financial Review Committee. This annual report shall be filed within three (3) months of the end of the Rotary year. It shall include, but not be limited to: (a) all sources of the Corporation's funds; (b) all funds received by, or on behalf of the District fundraising activities; (c) all financial transactions of the District committees; (d) all financial transactions of the District Governor by, or on behalf of, the Corporation; (e) grants received from the Rotary Foundation or funds of the Rotary Foundation designated by the Corporation for use; (f) all expenditures of the Corporation's funds; (g) all funds received by the District Governor from RI; and (h) all other funds received by the Corporation from any source.

4.05.03. District Funds and Bank Accounts. For purposes of these Bylaws, "District Funds" shall include any funds, cash, accounts, securities, donations, dues, bequests, legacies, registration fees, per capita contributions or other properties that belong to or are in the possession of the Corporation. All District Funds shall be deposited or invested where prudent in such bank or financial institution as may be recommended by the District Treasurer and approved by the District Governor and the District Finance Committee. All bank accounts shall clearly indicate that the funds are the property of the Corporation and not the personal property of any Member club or individual club member. Disbursements or withdrawals of District Funds from any bank account shall be solely by check.

4.05.03.01. District Budget Reserve Expenditures. Expenditures from any District Budget Reserve may be made only in accordance with the following procedure. A proposal for such expenditure shall be made in writing to the District Governor. The proposal may also be made by the District Governor. The proposal shall then be reviewed by the College of Governors and must receive approval of the District Finance Committee. The District Governor shall then mail a ballot to each Member club president explaining the proposal and including the recommendation of the College of Governors and Finance Committee. The entire

sections of the District Budget affected by such proposal shall be included in the ballot. The expenditure shall be approved only upon the majority vote of the Member club presidents, which shall be placed on the ballots provided by the District Governor. Ballots will be valid only if they are received by the District Governor within twenty (20) days of the date of mailing. The date post-marked on the ballot shall be used to verify the date of mailing. Any ballots not received in twenty (20) days shall be deemed to be a vote in favor of the proposal. At the conclusion of each Rotary year, any money not expended that exceeds the previous year's operating budget will be immediately designated for District Grants.

4.05.04. Bond. All officers who are to receive, handle and disburse Corporation funds shall be bonded. The District Finance Committee shall arrange for a blanket position indemnity bond covering such officers, administrators, and district committee members. The bond shall be for such amounts covering each officer as may be determined each year by the District Finance Committee and approved by the District Governor, based on the amount of money handled by each officer.

4.05.05. Assistant Treasurer. The District treasurer may appoint an assistant treasurer with approval of the District Governor-elect to serve a one-year term concurrent with the District Governor-elect's term as District Governor.

4.06 District Administrator. The Board shall hire a District Administrator who shall be an independent contractor to the Corporation. The District Administrator may be a Rotarian; however, past or present membership in a Rotary club is not a requirement for the position. The District Administrator position shall be part-time at no more than twenty (20) hours per week during any given Rotary year. The hourly rate for the position shall be determined by the District Governor and may be modified from time to time by the District Governor in consultation with the District Governor-elect, the District Governor-nominee and the District Treasurer. The District Administrator shall report to the District Governor. The District Administrator's duties shall vary from time to time based on the then-current activities in the District, as may be determined by the District Governor.

4.07 District Secretary. The District Governor shall appoint a District Secretary who shall be a member in good standing of a Member club and whose term shall be for one (1) year to coincide with the term of the District Governor. The District Secretary shall preserve and organize on a continuing and permanent basis all Corporation and other District-related records for the District Governor, the Annual Meeting and any other District affairs. Each District Governor shall, upon completion of his or her term of office, turn over to the successor District Secretary all copies of reports, audits, correspondence and other records for inclusion in the District archives. The District Secretary shall be responsible for safekeeping of all such records and any other Corporation property, and shall arrange for the accounting and the transfer of such records and property to the incoming District Governor. Immediately after a District Governor-nominee's name is confirmed and published by the District Governor, he or she shall be notified

by the District Secretary that the aforementioned records are available for review, including these Bylaws and any resolutions of the Corporation.

4.08 Removal from Office, Other Than the District Governor. The removal of any officer, other than the District Governor, may be made if for cause and upon majority vote of the Directors.

ARTICLE FIVE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

5.01 Composition. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor-nominee, and the most immediate and available Past District Governor, who is an active member of a Member club within the District. The District Governor shall serve as the Chairperson of the Executive Committee.

5.02 Responsibilities. The Executive Committee shall exercise all powers of the Board when the Board is not in session. It shall make decisions between meetings of the Members and between meetings of the Board on behalf of the Corporation on matters requiring immediate attention.

ARTICLE SIX

REPRESENTATIVE TO THE COUNCIL ON LEGISLATION

6.01 Composition. Each representative to the RI Council on Legislation must be a member of a Member club and must have served a full term as an officer of RI at the time of election. Provided, however, upon certification by the District Governor with the concurrence of the President of RI, that no past officer is available in the District to serve as representative, a Rotarian who shall have served less than a full term as the District Governor or District Governor-elect may be elected to serve.

6.02 Responsibilities. The responsibilities of the representative to the RI Council on Legislation shall include (a) preparation of a summary of the Corporation's proposed amendments and resolutions to be considered by the Council on Legislation; (b) securing from the Members opinions on these proposed amendments and resolutions; and (c) performing any other duties described in the Bylaws and policies of RI.

6.03 Election. The representative and alternate representative to the Council on Legislation shall be elected in accordance with the Bylaws of RI, as amended from time to time. Two (2) years before the year in which the RI Council on Legislation meets, the Corporation shall elect at its Annual Meeting one (1) representative and one (1) alternate representative to the RI Council on Legislation. Election shall be by the duly designated voting electors and chosen in accordance with the Bylaws and policies of RI. The names of the representative and alternate representative

to the RI Council on Legislation shall be reported by the District Governor to the General Secretary of RI promptly following their election.

ARTICLE SEVEN
DISTRICT COMMITTEES

7.01 General. District committees shall be established to support the development and growth of Member clubs. Other standing and ad hoc committees may be established as deemed necessary by the Corporation to support the Members and the administration of the Corporation.

7.01.01. Appointment of Chairpersons. The District Governor-elect shall appoint the chairperson of the District committees and subcommittees except for those committees for which these Bylaws specify a different method. The District Governor-elect shall make the appointments by the first day of January preceding his or her term as District Governor. Unless specified otherwise herein, the chairperson shall serve for a term of one (1) year. Past District Governors may serve as committee chairs. The committee chairperson may organize his or her committee, including appointing a secretary and/or treasurer of such committee, as necessary in the chairperson's discretion.

7.01.02. Committee Members. All committees should be composed of at least ten (10) Rotarians representing all areas of the district. The District Governor-elect or the chairperson of a committee shall appoint new members to the committee except for those committees for which these Bylaws require a different method. Each committee member shall serve a term of one (1) year, unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws. In the event of a vacancy on a committee due to the resignation of a committee member or otherwise, the District Governor may appoint another Rotarian to complete the unexpired term of the committee member responsible for the vacancy. With the exception of Past District Governors, no more than one (1) Rotarian from each Member club shall serve on the same committee, except in the case of exceptional and justifiable circumstances. No committee member who has served two (2) consecutive terms shall be appointed to serve a third term, except in the case of exceptional and justifiable circumstances. The committee chairperson may appoint additional non-voting members to a committee for a one (1) year term, provided the approval of the District Governor is obtained.

7.01.03. Quorum. A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of a committee shall exist if more than one-third of the committee shall be present at such meeting.

7.01.04. Committee Budget. All committees shall submit a financial budget request to the Finance Committee by February 1 of each year to be considered for the next year's District Budget. At the desecration of the District Governor, if no financial budget is submitted by a committee, the prior year committee budget will be used.

7.01.05. Committee Expenses. Reasonable administrative expenses incurred by committees and subcommittees in completing their prescribed duties or assignments may be reimbursed from District funds provided such expenses are included in the District Budget and are substantiated by proof of records, receipts, etc.

7.01.06. Special Committees. The District Governor may establish one or more special committees from time to time at his or her discretion. The District Governor shall appoint the chairperson and members of any such special committee and shall, in creating a special committee, define in writing the special committee's scope, duties, duration, and budget, if any.

7.01.07. Ex-officio Members of Committees. *Ex-officio* members of committees shall have all the rights of committee members, except the right to vote unless specifically stated otherwise. *Ex-officio* committee members shall not count toward any required quorum. The District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor nominee, and the District Governor nominee Designate shall be *ex-officio* members of all committees.

7.02 Financial Review Committee. The Financial Review Committee shall be composed of three (3) Rotarians in the District, one of whom must be a qualified accountant, each to serve a non-renewable term of one (1) year. The purpose of the Financial Review Committee shall be to review the books and accounts of the District Treasurer, the District Governor and those books and accounts of any committee or persons having possession of, authorization to spend, or other involvement with District Funds during the preceding fiscal year. The Financial Review Committee shall conduct the annual review of all such books and accounts and the chairperson must submit the annual audit report for the immediately preceding year to the District Treasurer by September 1 following the end of the fiscal year to which such report applies. The District Treasurer shall send a copy of the annual audit report to the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor-nominee, the Past District Governors, and each Member club president by October 1 following the applicable fiscal year.

7.03 Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall be composed of three (3) Rotarians within the District who shall each serve for a non-renewable term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that one (1) new committee member shall be appointed each year. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the contrary, no member of the Finance Committee shall serve more than one (1) term. The District Treasurer shall be an *ex officio* member of the Finance Committee. The purpose of the Finance Committee shall be to act as custodian of District Funds and to have the authority to make disbursements of District Funds as authorized by resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. In carrying out its purpose, the Finance Committee shall: (a) prepare a budget of income and expenses of the Corporation for the forthcoming fiscal year and submit it at the District Assembly or review and approval; (b) send a copy of the proposed District Budget to each Member club president-elect at least thirty (30) days before the District Assembly; (c) authorize the District Treasurer to collect and disburse District Funds as provided in the District Budget and as authorized by resolution of the Corporation; (d) oversee the work of the District Treasurer to ensure proper use of, and

accounting for, District Funds; (e) invest non-productive District Funds in securities approved as legal investments for trust funds or savings banks; (f) establish a District Budget Reserve in an amount not to exceed the previous year's District Budget; (g) authorize unanticipated expenditures of District Funds requested by the District Governor at a meeting duly convened by the District Governor, not to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the authorized District Budget Reserve in any one (1) year, for projects not addressed in any resolution of the Corporation; and (h) carry out such other duties as the District Governor may assign from time to time.

7.04 District Extension Committee. The District Extension Committee shall be composed of three (3) Rotarians, each appointed for an initial term of three (3) years. Each committee member shall be eligible to serve an additional term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that one (1) new committee member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the District Extension Committee shall be to encourage and promote the formation of new Member clubs. In carrying out its purpose, the District Extension Committee shall (a) identify, qualify, and charter new Member clubs; (b) assist in the examination of the possibility of the formation of a new Member club; and (c) assist existing Member clubs in the process of forming and sponsoring new Member clubs.

7.05 District College of Governors. In accordance with the RI Manual of Procedures, a council of Past District Governors called the College of Governors will be organized each year to provide assistance to the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, and the District Governor-nominee in planning and operating their respective responsibilities. The College of Governors shall be composed of all Past District Governors, the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor-nominee, the District Treasurer, and the District Secretary. The College of Governors shall act in an advisory capacity only and meet at least twice per year. The College of Governors shall (a) provide fiscal advice in preparation of the District Budget; (b) review proposals for expenditures from the reserve accounts and make recommendations to the District Governor and the Member club presidents; and (c) review and make recommendations on all proposed resolutions of the Corporation.

7.06 Vocational Service Committee. The Vocational Service Committee shall be composed of three (3) Rotarians within the District who shall each serve for a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that one (1) new committee member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the Vocational Service Committee shall be to administer the District programs of Vocational Service and promote vocational service activities in the Member clubs. In carrying out its purposes, the Vocational Service Committee shall (a) interpret and communicate the RI Vocational Service programs and activities to the Member clubs; (b) increase awareness of vocation in the Member clubs; (c) assist Member clubs in initiating and strengthening their Vocational Service programs; and (d) provide at least one (1) District Vocational Service program each year.

7.07 Youth Exchange Committee. The Youth Exchange Committee shall be composed of fifteen (15) Rotarians within the District who shall each serve for a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that five (5) new committee members shall be appointed each year. There is no limitation on the number of terms a member of the

Youth Exchange Committee may be appointed. The purpose of the Youth Exchange Committee shall be to actively promote and encourage the exchange of students between countries and to arrange to have students as guests of Rotarians within the District in order to enable the students to learn the social, economic, and cultural aspects of life on a personal basis in a different country. In carrying out its purpose, the Youth Exchange Committee shall (a) work with Eastern States Student Exchange (ESSEX) to arrange for students in the District to travel to foreign countries and to obtain host families for foreign students visiting the District; (b) actively promote the concept of Youth Exchange among the various Member clubs so that a large number of qualified candidates are available each year to participate in the program; and (c) oversee the hosting of these foreign students in the District.

7.08 Interact Committee.

7.08.01. Membership shall be Rotarians in good standing who have an interest in Interact. The number of members may vary and shall be determined by the number of members needed to carry out the committee mission. The District Governor-elect shall appoint the Chairperson and the Chairperson, in collaboration with the District Governor-elect, shall appoint the members.

The purpose of the Interact Committee shall be to administer the District's Interact Program of RI. In carrying out its purpose, the Interact Committee shall (a) assist the District Governor in publicizing the Interact Program of RI; (b) administer the District Interact Program; (c) encourage and assist Member clubs in sponsoring and organizing Interact Clubs in high schools within the District; (d) develop the exchange of information between existing Interact Clubs and encourage cooperation and joint meetings between Interact Clubs; (e) assist in the organization of an annual Interact District Conference and the election of an Interact District Governor; and (f) provide other appropriate activities that will promote and strengthen the Interact movement.

7.09 Membership Development Committee. The Membership Development Committee shall be composed of six (6) Rotarians within the District who shall each serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that two (2) new committee members shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the Membership Development Committee shall be to train Member clubs in ways to promote membership development in conformity with Rotary Classification and Membership Principles. In carrying out its purpose, the Membership Development Committee shall (a) assist Member clubs in analyzing reasons that individual club members leave Rotary and suggest retention strategies; (b) encourage Member clubs to assist individual club members who need to transfer or relocate to a new Member club within the District; (c) assist Member clubs in preparing an annual classification survey of their community; (d) assist Member clubs in reviewing their classification rosters and surveys to promote balanced club membership and to determine prospective new individual club members; (e) provide any other appropriate activities or programs that will encourage an increase in Rotary membership; and (f) present at least two (2) membership seminars for individual club members covering topics relating to recruitment and retention.

7.10 Nominating Committee.

7.10.1 Composition. The Nominating Committee shall consist of nine (9) Rotarians within the District, five (5) of which shall be immediate past presidents of Member clubs and four of which, including the Chairperson, shall be the most recent Past District Governors available to serve. The District Governor-elect shall appoint the five immediate past president members of the Nominating Committee, who shall each serve for a one (1) year term. The Chairperson of the Nominating Committee shall be the Past District Governor who is four (4) years removed from serving as District Governor. If he/she is not available to serve, then the chairperson shall be a Past District Governor appointed by the District Governor-Elect. The term of the five (5) immediate past presidents shall be non-renewable. No member, alternate member, candidate for membership on the Nominating Committee, whether elected or not, or any candidate who is elected and subsequently resigns from the Nominating Committee shall be eligible to be nominated for the respective office in the year in which the Nominating Committee serves.

7.10.02. Responsibilities. The Nominating Committee shall seek out and propose the best available candidates for the office of District Governor-nominee and for the office of District Governor-elect, if necessary. The District Governor-nominee shall be nominated by the Nominating Committee before the Annual Meeting in accordance with the Bylaws and policies of RI, these Bylaws, and the resolutions of the Corporation adopted from time to time. The Nominating Committee shall hold an organizational meeting during the District Conference of the year preceding the committee members' term of service or as soon thereafter as possible to review RI qualifications for nominees. The Nominating Committee shall ensure that all applications for District Governor-nominee include Member club recommendations and a complete resume of the individual proposed. The District Committee shall meet as necessary for the purpose of interviewing and selecting nominees for District Governor-nominee Designate to be presented to the District at the Annual Business meeting held during the District Conference. The Nominating Committee shall notify the then-current District Governor of the candidate selected. The District Governor shall then notify the Member clubs of the name and identity of the Member club of the District-Governor nominee in accordance with the RI Bylaws.

7.10.03. Nominating Procedure. Each year, Member clubs suggesting candidates for nomination as District Governor must submit applications to the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee by the date specified in a notice from the District Governor and the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall not be limited in its selection to those names submitted by Member Clubs. The Nominating Committee shall evaluate the qualifications of each candidate and shall nominate the best-qualified Rotarian available to serve as District Governor. The Nominating Committee shall interview all candidates and will make a report of its nomination to the District Governor in accordance with the Bylaws of RI, as amended from time to time. The District Governor shall publish the report of the Nominating Committee and fix a deadline for the submission by Member clubs of names of any other challenger

candidates, which deadline will be not less than fourteen (14) days after publication of the report. Any Member club may propose a challenger candidate for District Governor-nominee. The challenger candidate must have been duly submitted to the Nominating Committee for consideration. The District Governor shall notify all Member clubs of the name(s) of the challenger candidate(s). The District Governor shall inquire if any Member club wishes to concur with this challenge. Only challenges that have been concurred with by at least five (5) other clubs in the District will be considered. All candidates for District Governor-nominee will be voted upon at the Annual Meeting. If no Member club proposes a Rotarian for District Governor-nominee, or if no candidate otherwise qualifies, the Nominating Committee shall select a candidate and present his or her name to the District Governor under the procedures set forth above.

7.11 Public Relations Committee. The Public Relations Committee shall be composed of six (6) Rotarians within the District, each appointed to serve for a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that two (2) new committee members shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the Public Relations Committee shall be to interpret RI's Programs of Service to Member clubs, individual Rotarians, and the public. In carrying out its purposes, the Public Relations Committee shall (a) develop a communication network between Member clubs to provide timely information; (b) develop a roster of media contacts to provide for distribution of Rotary information; (c) disseminate information on District and Member club projects and activities; (d) disseminate information from RI to appropriate areas; (e) provide appropriate information to the District Governor for publication in the District Governor's monthly newsletter; (f) encourage and assist Member clubs in the dissemination of Rotary information to their members and communities; (g) encourage the publication and exchange of Member club bulletins; and (h) provide any other appropriate activities or programs that will promote dissemination of information relating to Rotary.

7.12 Rotaract Committee. The Rotaract Committee shall be composed of three (3) Rotarians within the District, each appointed to serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that one (1) committee member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the Rotaract Committee shall be to administer the District Rotaract Programs of RI. In carrying out its purpose, the Rotaract Committee shall (a) assist the District Governor in publicizing the Rotaract Programs; (b) administer the District Rotaract Programs; (c) encourage and assist Member clubs in sponsoring and organizing Rotaract clubs in the colleges, universities, and communities within the District; (d) develop the exchange of information between existing Rotaract clubs and encourage cooperation and joint meetings between Rotaract clubs; (e) assist in the organization of an annual Rotaract District Conference and the election of a Rotaract District Governor; and (f) provide any other activities that will promote and strengthen the Rotaract movements.

7.13 Committee on Legislation and Resolutions. The Committee on Legislation and Resolutions shall be composed of five (5) Rotarians, each appointed to serve a non-renewable term of five (5) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that one (1) committee member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of the Committee on Legislation and Resolutions shall be to prepare and present Resolutions of the Corporation for consideration

at the Annual Meeting. In carrying out its purpose, the Committee on Legislation and Resolutions shall (a) review Resolutions annually and recommend appropriate additions, modifications, or deletions as necessary; (b) solicit from Member clubs, District committees and the District Governor any Resolutions to be considered at the Annual Meeting; (c) review and prepare all Resolutions received and present them to the District Governor, District Governor-elect, District Governor-nominee, the Past District Governors, and Member club presidents with its recommendations; (d) present Resolutions for consideration at the Annual Meeting and provide any necessary information for clarification; (e) review and submit to the Annual Meeting for action any Member club-proposed enactments or Resolutions to the Council on Legislation; (f) preserve all Resolutions adopted by the Corporation and maintain a District Resolutions Manual; and (g) post the District Resolutions Manual on the Corporation's website for the benefit of all Rotarians in the District.

7.14 Information Technology Committee. The Information Technology Committee shall be composed of twelve (12) members, each appointed to serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the committee members shall be staggered so that four (4) members shall be appointed each year. The District Webmaster shall be an *ex officio* member of this committee. The purpose of the Information Technology Committee shall be to establish, promote and annually evaluate the Corporation's website. In carrying out its purpose, the committee shall (a) establish and maintain the Corporation's website; (b) review annually with the District Governor and the District Finance Committee the cost efficient methods for maintaining the Corporation's website; (c) review and evaluate the content of the Corporation's website for appropriateness in light of constant changing electronic technology; and (d) perform such other functions as necessary to utilize emerging technologies.

7.15 The Rotary Foundation Committee. The Rotary Foundation Committee shall be composed of the Chairperson elected in accordance with these Bylaws, the chairpersons of each of the subcommittees listed below, and three (3) other individual club members within the District. Each committee member shall be appointed for an initial term of three (3) years, and may serve for an additional term of three (3) years. The purpose of the District Rotary Foundation Committee is to administer and oversee all of the Rotary Foundation programs in the District. It shall endeavor to carry out the objectives of the Rotary Foundation, which is the achievement of world understanding and peace through international charitable and educational programs. The District Rotary Foundation Committee generally conducts its business through the use of subcommittees, as described further below. In carrying out its purpose, the Committee shall (a) provide information about Rotary Foundation activities and programs in Member clubs; (b) encourage support for the Rotary Foundation through all channels for securing funds; (c) appoint and monitor the progress of the following subcommittees, each of which shall consist of three (3) members: (i) Scholarships Subcommittee; (ii) World Peace Fellowship Subcommittee; (iii) Vocational Training Teams Subcommittee; (iv) Annual Giving Subcommittee; (v) Alumni Subcommittee; (vi) Permanent Fund Subcommittee; (vii) World Grants Subcommittee; (viii) District Grants Subcommittee; and (ix) such other subcommittees as may be created from time to time by the Corporation. Each of the above-referenced subcommittees, and including the subcommittees further described below, shall follow the duties and responsibilities of their supervisory committee outlined in the RI Manual of Procedure.

7.15.01. Scholarships Subcommittee. The Scholarships Subcommittee shall consist of six (6) Rotarians within the District, each appointed to serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the subcommittee members shall be staggered so that one (1) member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of this subcommittee shall be to administer the District Scholarship Programs. In carrying out its purpose, the subcommittee shall (a) recruit and select qualified applicants for available Scholarships by criteria set forth by RI; (b) provide administrative support to educators and applicants; and (c) ensure that each outbound and inbound Ambassadorial Scholar is assigned a Rotarian Counselor.

7.15.02. World Peace Fellowship Subcommittee. The World Peace Fellowship Subcommittee shall consist of three (3) Rotarians within the District, each appointed to serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the subcommittee members shall be staggered so that one (1) member shall be appointed each year. The purpose of this subcommittee shall be to administer the District World Peace Fellowships. In carrying out its purpose, the subcommittee shall (a) recruit and select a qualified candidate to nominate for a World Peace Fellowship each year; (b) provide administrative support to educators and applicants; and (c) ensure that each World Peace Fellow is assigned a Rotarian Counselor.

7.15.03. Vocational Training Teams Subcommittee. The Subcommittee shall consist of nine (9) Rotarians within the District, each appointed to serve a term of three (3) years. The terms of the subcommittee members shall be staggered so that three (3) members shall be appointed each year. The purpose of this subcommittee shall be to administer the District Vocational Training Teams. At the discretion of the District Governor, the functions of inbound and outbound Vocational Training Teams may have separate and equal chairs that will be responsible for coordinating those District activities. In carrying out its purpose, the subcommittee shall (a) recruit and select a team leader and team members for outgoing teams; (b) coordinate the preparation and transportation arrangements for outbound Vocational Training Teams; (c) arrange lodging, meals and transportation within the District for visiting Vocational Training Teams; (d) provide advice for the District Governor-elect and District Governor-nominee concerning future Vocational Training Teams; (e) provide publicity about Vocational Training Team activities; and (f) provide any other activities that will support the District Vocational Training Teams Program.

7.16 Strategic Planning Committee. The Strategic Planning Committee shall consist of the immediate Past District Governor, the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the District Governor-nominee and the District Governor-nominee-designate. The purpose of the Strategic Planning Committee shall be to define the long term (five (5) year) and short term (three (3) year) goals of the Corporation and to perform regular and systematic reviews of Corporation operations with the aim of developing strategies to identify and address opportunities and challenges associated with those goals. The Strategic Planning Committee may form subcommittees as it requires, consisting of individual members of Member clubs and other such individuals as the Committee sees fit to appoint. In carrying out its purpose, the Strategic

Planning Committee shall (a) hold regular meetings to discuss issues related to strategic planning for the Corporation; (b) promote continuity of purpose among the past, current and future District Governors; and (c) issue regular reports to the Member clubs outlining the recommendations, strategies, and proposed amendments to the Resolutions.

ARTICLE EIGHT

LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

8.01 Limitation of Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by law, no director of the Corporation shall be personally liable for monetary damages for any action taken, or for any failure to take any action, as a director; provided, however, such limitation of liability shall not apply if the director shall have breached or failed to perform the duties of his or her office and the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful misconduct or recklessness; and further provided that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to the responsibility or liability of a director pursuant to any criminal statute, or to the liability of a director for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or federal law.

8.02 Indemnification. Except as prohibited by law, the Corporation may indemnify a director or officer of the Corporation against expenses (including counsel fees) and any liability (including judgments, fines, penalties, excise taxes and amounts paid in settlement) paid or incurred by such person in connection with any actual or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding, civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other (hereinafter, a "Claim") whether brought by or in the right of the Corporation or otherwise, in which such person may be involved, as a party or otherwise, or by reason of such person being or having been a director or officer of the Corporation.

No indemnification pursuant to this paragraph shall be made, however, in any case where the act or failure to act giving rise to the claim for indemnification is determined by a court to have constituted willful misconduct or recklessness.

8.03 Insurance. The Corporation may provide, at its expense, insurance to protect itself and for the benefit of any director or officer of the Corporation against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person under law.

ARTICLE NINE

MISCELLANEOUS

9.01 Conformity with RI Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. These Bylaws are intended to supplement the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of RI. If any provision in these Bylaws conflicts with the Constitution, Bylaws, or policies of RI, as amended, then the terms of the Constitution, Bylaws, or policies of RI shall prevail. These bylaws should be subject to review in the year following the Council on Legislation.

9.02 Roberts' Rules of Order. The edition of *Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised* that is then currently sanctioned by the Roberts' Rules Association governs this Corporation in all parliamentary situations that are not provided for in the law, these Bylaws, or adopted Resolutions.

9.03 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall be from July 1 through June 30.

ARTICLE TEN

AMENDMENTS

10.01 Amendment Process. These Bylaws may be amended as follows:

10.01.01. At the Members Annual Business Meeting. These Bylaws may be amended at the Annual Meeting by a majority vote of those members present and voting, provided that no amendment shall be considered unless it has been submitted in writing to the District Governor at least sixty (60) days before the Annual Meeting, and provided further that the District Governor shall have given notice of such proposed amendment to all Members at least thirty (30) days before the Annual Meeting of the Members.

10.01.02. Vote By Ballot-by-Mail. These Bylaws may be amended by Ballot-by-Mail of the Members if a majority of the votes are cast in favor of the proposed amendment. Each Member shall have that number of votes as otherwise set forth in Section 2.04 of these Bylaws as if electors were voting at the Annual Meeting. Each Member must cast its entire vote as a block. The proposed amendment must have been submitted in writing to the District Governor at least sixty (60) days before the date of the Ballot-by-Mail vote, and the District Governor must have given notice of such proposed amendment to all of the Members at least thirty (30) days before the date of the Ballot-by-Mail vote.

10.01.03. Who May Propose An Amendment to the Bylaws. Only the District Governor, the District Governor-elect, the Board, or a Member may propose an amendment to these Bylaws.

10.02 Effective Date. Amendments to the Bylaws shall be effective on July 1 following the Annual Meeting at which they were adopted, unless otherwise specifically stated in such amendment.

10.03 Amendment Limitation. Unless otherwise required by law, the Corporation may not adopt any amendment to these Bylaws that conflicts with the Constitution, Bylaws, or policies of RI.

Adopted at Rotary District 7360 Annual Meeting on April 26, 2014 to be effective July 1, 2014.

Revised at Rotary District 7360 Annual Meeting on April 30, 2016.